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DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA NOMINATED TO THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF
HISTORIC PLACES (see map):

Jackson County Courthouse block is bounded on the north by Maple
Avenue running from the southeast corner where Maple Avenue and
Liberty Street intersect to the southwest corner where Maple
Avenue and Main Street intersect; on the south by Lexington
Avenue running from the northeast corner where Lexington Avenue
and Liberty Street intersect to the northwest corner where
Lexington Avenue and Main Street intersect; on the west by
Liberty Street running from the southeast corner where Liberty
Street and Maple Avenue intersect to the northeast corner where
Liberty Street and Lexington Avenue intersect; and on the east by
Main Street running from the southwest corner where Main Street
and Maple Avenue intersect to the northwest corner where Main
Street and Lexington Avenue intersect.

EXTERIOR

Jackson County Courthouse is designed in the Georgian revival style
of the 1930's, "The designer, David Frederick Wallace, associated
with Keene and Simpson, employed the Georgian architecture of
Colonial Virginia meeting houses..."

The building is rectangular and symmetrical in plan, with three floors,
and is constructed of Indiana limestone, concrefe, red brick, and
Vermont slate. The north and south facades are 186 feet across; the
east and west facades are 73 feet across. The center section of the
building, on the north and south facades, is nine bays wide and is
flanked by two lower wings, each three bays wide. The east and west
facades are five bays across. The center three bays on the north

and south facades are projected two feet forward from the main wall,

as are the three center bays on the east and west facades. The two
wings are also projected two feet forward from the main wall of the
north and south facades. The main entrances are centered on the north
and south facades, with secondary entrances centered on the east and
west facades. Two-story tetrastyle porticoes accentuate the main
entrances. A cupola is centered over the central section of the court-
house. There is a hipped, slate roof over the central section and a
flat roof over the two wings. Single chimneys are located at the east
and west ends of the central section of the courthouse,

The windows on both floors of the courthouse are rectangular in shape.
Each windew on the first floor is jack-arched with a double keystone.
These windows are set into shallow round-headed niches. They have
nine over nine, double-hung sashes. The second floor windows are
similar in shape with variations in the number of panes and the decora-
tive elements employed. The keystone is single, and the sash is six
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over nine, double-hung. Instead of being set into a niche, these
windows are flush with the wall surface. The second floor windows
located under the porticoes are much larger than the other windows
found on either floor. These windows are similar to the first fleoor
windows, being jack-arched with a double keystone, but have twelve
over twelve, double-hung sashes.

The porticoes are classic in form. The columns are of unfluted lime-
stone, three drums each, plus a base and a capital, and rest on a
separate plinth., Each drum is 10 feet high, 3 feet in diameter, and
weighs 5 tons.2 The capital is a simplified version of the Corin-
thian order. Two pilasters, consistent in form with the four columns,
secure the portico visually to the wall of the central section of

the courthouse, The columns support a simple pediment. Decorative
details include two rosettes located on the frieze over the first

and fourth columns and gray limestone bas-reliefs on the pediment.

On the north facade the relief is the Seal of Missouri and on the
south facade, the Seal of Jackson County.

On the north and south facades the doorway is centered under the
portico. These doorways are recessed back from the wall surface and
have round-arched pediments over them. The doorway jambs have four-
panel wooden facings. The two flanking pilasters, which support the
pediment, are of the JTonic order and rest on separate plinths. The
entablature is recessed over the door proper and is projected over the
flanking pilasters. On the freize, directly over the pilasters,

there are rosettes which are identical in design to those on the freize
of the portico. Above the door is a rectangular transom with a single
pane of glass. The doorways on the east and west facades are similar
to the doorways already described. The only difference is in the
shape of the pediments over the doorways. Instzad of being rounded,
they are triangular. Each doorway has a single set of wooden, three-
panel, double doors.

A straight stalrway approaches the west door at the first floor level,
while two stairways, each a quarter of a circle, approach the basement.
These curved stairs are located to the side of and go down under the
main stairway. All of these stairs have wrought iron railings. The
steps on the north and south facades are an extension of the platform
on which the portico columns rest. These steps are stone and run

the entire length of the portico. There are no railings. The east

.stairway is composed of two curved stairways. Each curved stairway

is a quarter of a circle and approaches the door at the first floor
level. There are wrought Iron railings on both stairs.
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A parapet wall surmounts the central section of the courthouse and
the two wings. It is constructed of brick and limestone, and has

two different designs. The main parapet, on the central section of
the building, is more detailed than that on the wings. This para-
pet is accentuated by stone blocks, decorated with bas-reliefs in

the shape of a square, at the exterior corners of the central section
and at the corners of the projecting center three bays. Each section
of balustrade is placed directly over a second floor window on the
north and south sides of the central section. This scheme is con-
tinued along the east and west sides of this section. The parapet on
the wings is, however, simpler is design, lacking the balustrade
sections and the corner blocks. The exterior corners are accentuated
by modified quoins which are a continuation of the quoins applied to
the corners of the walls below. In place of the balustrade sections
are recessed brick panels. The corners of the projecting center
three bays of the east and west facades also have quoins. The center
section is taller than the rest of the wing parapet and has a modified
stone bracket-like feature located at the side, resting on the upper
edge of the quoins. Stone bas-reliefs of the American spread-eagle
surrounded by the symbolic wreath of Victory and Progress ornament
this center section. :

The cupola is constructed of wood and artifically corroded copper.

It consists of three main parts. There is a 15 foot square base
which is surmounted by a balustrade with finlals atop the four corner
posts. This base supports an arcaded octagonal plan structure which,
in turn, supports the dome. The overall height of the cupola 1s 45
feet, A weathervane 1s located atop the dome and extends the height
of the cupola another 10 feet. On each of the four sides of the

base there is a clock face. :

The wall surface of the courthouse is basically plain, broken only by
the window and door openings and by the use of stone features either
for functional purposes or decoration. The basement level is entirely
of limestone, creating a marked contrast between it and the rest of
the building, which is red brick, This limestone sectlon is carried
up to the bases of the first floor windows and creates a continuous
sill under them. The limestone entablatures of the portico pediments
are extended across all four sides of the central section of the court-—
house. A limestone cornice, which rests on the upper edge of the
second story window keystones, 1s used on the wings. Both of these
features divide the second floor windows from the parapets and form

a base for the parapets. Limestone quoins are located at the corners
of the wings and at the point where the wings project forward from

the central section of the courthouse. These quoins accentuate the

-
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rectangular shape of the wings. Quoins are also employed on the
east and west facades at the point where the three center bays are
projected from the main wall surface. All of the other decorative
features employed are also of limestone, making them contrast the
red brick walls: the carved panels, each with a carved swag bas-
relief, located over the six second floor windows adjacent to the
porticoes; the tops of the chimneys; the balustrades; and thé bas-
reliefs.

On either side of the south facade entrance are two green marble
plaques. The plaque on the east bears the names of the members of
the county court at the time of the old log structure and the names
of those in office at the time of each remodeling. A dedicatory
inscription including a history of the various remodelings, is on
the west plaque.

INTERIOR

The interior of the courthouse is divided into three floors, a base-
ment, a main floor, and a second floor.

Basement:

The basement rooms are located under the east and west wings. A
tunnel type corridor running under the central portion of the building
connects the rooms. This tunnel is well painted and lighted, but

is not "finished." 1In the west wing there are two cells, located.

in the northwest corner; the constable's quarters; the boiler room,

in the southwest corner; and the transformer rcom.

Main Floor:

The main entrances are located on the north and south sides of the
main floor; side entrances are at the east and west ends. Central
hallways, running between these four doors, intersect and bisect

each other at right angles. Offices open off the corridor running
east and west. In the east wing there are six offices and one court-
room. In the west wing, there are three offices, all much larger

than the east wing offices. The central area where the two corridors
intersect is slightly barrel-vaulted. There are two stalrways leading
to the second floor located in the east and west wings on the north
side of the courthouse.

The central area walls are sheathed in pale grey marble with a red
marble baseboard. A moulded plaster cornice at the top is painted
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mauve and rosy mauve. The ceiling is white,

The corridors are plastered and painted. The dado is rosy beige and
the walls above are beige. The baseboard is wood, not marble as in
the central section. The doorways are simply framed.

The floors are covered with a brown surface with a dark brown border.
The north and south end floors are of tile, while the east and west
end floors are of poured cement. In the central area the floor is
asphalt tile over diagonally-laid wecod flooring.

Second Floor:

The Magistrate's Courtroom is at the center of the building. Other
offices and courts are located along the east-west corridor. There
are five offices east of the main courtroom. To the west, there are
four offices and the Probate Courtroom.

The corridor walls are two-tone in color, the dado being beige and
the upper wall cocoa brown., The floors are large sheets of asphalt
tile, brown with black trim.

The Magistrate's Courtroom is approximately square in plan. The cor-
ners are cut off diagonally to accommodate the flues of the fireplaces
formerly located at these points. The courtroom also has a rear cir-
culation corridor on the southern side of the room allowing for easy
access and ventilation. When court 1s not in session, traffic goes
directly through the courtroom. The walls of the courtroom are
painted light blue, and topped by a classic, moulded cornice, pres-
ently painted gold or gold-leafed. The floors are a continuation

in color and type of those in the corridors.

Alterations:

The Jackson County Courthouse has been remodeled five times. Through-
out these remodelings, the original 1836 courthouse built at this

site has been retained as the central section of the courthouse,

the remodelings being mainly confined to additions to the original
structure. The present central area on the main floor and the court-
room on the second floor are part of this original section.

The first, permanent courthouse was built in 1836. This courthouse
was a square, two-story, brick structure and had a tall spire on top.
A wooden fence enclosed the building and its one and one-fourth acres
of land.
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This building was ample for about twelve years, and in 1848, the
County Court decided on remodeling the courthouse. The courthouse
was enlarged, its exterior walls were refaced, and the building

was garbed in a form of colonial architecture. Columns extended
from the ground to the roof all the way around the building. The
spire was cut down to a small cupola. This remodeling increased the
building size only on the exterior.

An important remodeling job was undertaken in 1872. Red brick was
used to reface the entire structure. An east wing topped by a
pointed tower was added. A railing was placed around the top of

the building and Grecian urns were set at intervals along it. The
tall columns were done avay with and porches with balconies were
built at the north and south entrances. The interior was rearranged
and much more room achieved.

Again in 1887, the rapidly growing Jackson County required more
courthouse space, and another remodeling job was ordered. The
north and south porches were changed and porches were added on the
east and west sides. The tower wing was also enlarged to provide
more office space.

For some twenty years the courthouse building served the county with-
out change. 1In that time, however, the east or older wing began to
gshow signs of deterioration. Therefore, in 1907, the courthouse was
again remodeled. The partially crumbling walls of the east wing were
refaced. Hallways, offices, and even the tower were changed to give
more space and a better arrangement of rooms. The spire effect of
the tower gave way to a more nearly square design, with the four-
faced clock being retained. The biggest change was the enlargement
of the Circuit Courtroom. It was broughtout on the morth and south
flush with the building, utilizing the balconies on those two sides.

In 1933, the courthouse was again remodeled, being brought to its pres-
ent appearance at that time.

SETTING

The courthouse is situated on the public square. The business dis-
trict surrounds the block on all four sides.

A narrow sidewalk runs along the curb of the block. Wide walks lead
up to the four courthouse doors from this curb walk. These four
entrance: walks are connected with each other by broad walks located
midway between the courthouse and the curb walk. These broad side-




Farm 10-300q UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE -
{July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Missouri

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [counTy
Jackson

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)

(INumbar a1l antrieg)

7. #6
THE JACKSON COUNTY COURTHQUSE

walks intersect each other and the curb walk at the corners.

At various location on the courthouse square are 1) a statue of
General Andrew Jackson, placed at the east entrance by former
President Harry S. Truman in 1949; 2) a marker honoring Jackson
County pioneers, Revolutionary soldiers and the like on the south-
east corner of the block, erected in 1932; 3) a second marker com-
memorating the Santa Fe Trail, erected by the Daughters of the
American Revolution in 1909, situated on the southwest corner; and
4) "Here the Oregon Trail Began," located on the northwest quadrant
of the block, erected in 1948 by the Jackson County Court,

FOOTNOTES

lindependence [Missouri] Examiner, September 5, 1933, p. 2.

21bid., p. 2.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Jackson County Courthouse is historically significant as the
oldest structure in continuous use as a courthouse in Missouri.

The structure reflects the stages of physical development which

have proved to be characteristic of the majority of the Misscuri
courthouses. The core of the present building includes the court-
house built in 1836--a building that has never been torn down during
the numerous and extensive rebuildings that followed, though it was
extensively remodeled each time. Further significance is contributed
to the structure in that it housed for ten years the office of former
United StatesPresident Harry S. Truman, then Eastern Judge and Pre-
siding Judge.

Initially, while awaiting the construction of a "permanent" log
courthouse, the typical pioneer county court conducted its business
in a residential building. As the county expanded and more demands
were made of the court, the log structure quickly became outdated.
Usually, a two-story, brick building replaced the log one. Gen-~
erally, the growth of the county again dictated a bigger and better
functioning structure. By the 1870's and 1880's, more pretentious
and ornamentally elaborate edifices nudged the smaller brick court-
house off the courthouse square. Unfortunately, the majority of
these buildings burned in the 1830's and early 1900's. Their re-
placements represent, with varying degrees of quality, the '"Mod-
erne” style in courthouse architecture.

The first Jackson County Circuit Court convened at the home of John
Young on May 29, 1827. "At this meeting the court directed that bids
be sought for the building of a temporary log courthouse made of
"hewn logs™ to be located on a site now near Lexington and Lynn streets
the block east of the present public square. Specifications called
for the building to be thirty-six feet long and eighteen feet wide.

A fireplace was to be placed in each of two rooms."2 That same year,
the county court moved inteo its new headquarters--a log courthouse
which is still preserved a few blocks from the present building.
Within two years, plans were being made for a larger, red brick
building which was completed in 1836. Unlike most counties which
have lost successive buildings to demolition, fire, or natural decay;
Jackson County still possesses its original log courthouse and has
retained the basic 1836 structure by incorporating later renovations

and additions around it.
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The 1836 courthouse, a 40' x 30', two-story, brick structure with
twelve windows and four chimneys, is the central core of the present
courthouse,

Since 1836, five remodelings have been made around this courthouse
without altering the basic integrity of the building. These re-
modelings took place in 1848, 1872, 1887, 1907, and 1933.

The 1848 structure "...was distinctly colenial with six columns ex-
tending from the ground to the roof on each side and with a set back

in the center of both the north and south sides with an entrance in
each. The building was practically square. Only the tops of the
chimneys were visible, The tall spire was chopped off and a cupocla
took its place. There were many more windows in this new structure.”3

During the Civil War, Independence was occupied by the Union Army,
except when the Confederates twice captured it for brief periods.

Though the courthouse was used as a headquarters and hospital, it

was little damaged during the battles.

With the second renovation in 1872, a square clock tower with sharp
spire replaced the cupola. An ornamental railing was placad around
the edge of the red brick building with urns placed at intervals.
Porches were built on the north and south sides of the building with
balconies over them. A wing was also added on the east side. Central
heating was also installez at this time. The building took on a
Second Empire appearance.

A two-story amnex was built adjacent to the west side of the court-
house in 1887 and was comnected to the main building by colonnades.?
At this time the clock tower was also modified. The work was super-
vised by Asa B, Cross, a prominent Kansas City architect.®

Twenty years later, more room was needed, and the building was altered
once more. The exterior was refaced with yellow brick, the tower
shortened and the top squared; inside, the orientation of the court-
room was changed 90° and the lower floor extensively rearranged.7

The last remodeling of the courthouse was the most extensive. Under

. the leadership of Presiding Judge Harry S. Truman, all additions to
the 1836 courthouse were removed and a much larger, Neo—Colonial
style building was constructed around the core. The second floor
Circuit Courtroom remained the same, however, but other courtrooms
and offices were relocated.8 The bullding retains this appearance
today.
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Former President Truman held office in the courthouse for ten years
(1922-24, 1926-34). During his tenure as judge, the basis for his
nomination and election as a Missouri senator and as a United States
President was being laid. Truman's leadership secured $20,000,000.00
in bond issues to construct highways and public buildings. The total
expenditure of $60,000,000.009 in capital improvement funds during
his tenure as judge would appear to indicate the effectiveness of
Truman's building program and his significance to the development of
Jackson County.

Besides serving as a hospital during the Civil War, the courthouse
has at various times provided a 10catiiB for dramatics, community
meetings, and even an artist's studio. The courthouse was the
scene of the trial of "Big Bill" Ryan, the first member of the James
gang to be brought before the bar of justice. Frank James was
arralgned there after his surrender in 1882. The Swope murder trials
occurred there in the early twentieth century.

The survey of Missouri's sites of historical and architectural sig-
nificance 1s based on the selection of sites as they relate to theme
studies in Missouri history as outlined in Missouri's "Comprehensive
Statewide Preliminary Historic Preservation Plan." The Jackson:

County Courthouse is therefore being nominated to the National Register
of Historic Places 1) because of the association of the building

with former United States President Harry S. Truman and 2) because

as an example of the theme study of Missouri county courthouses, this
structure is the oldest building in Missouri continually in use as a
county courthouse. )

FOOTNOTES
lGeneralization drawn from historical and architectural data collected
by staff members of the Missouri State Park Board, State Historical

Survey and Planning Office during a comprehensive survey of Missouri's
114 courthouses during the winter of 1970-71.

2Ransas City [Missouri] Star, August 7, 1932, Section D, p. I.

3Independence [Missouri] Examiner, September 5, 1933; and "A Bird's
Eye View of the City of Independence, Missouri, 1868," (engraving).

4Jackson County Court Record Book, Vol, 16, pp. 216, 253, 469.

3Tbid., Vol. 24, p. 257.




Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE

(July 1969): NATIONAL PARK SERYICE .
i Missouri
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |county
INVENTORY - NOMINATION EORM Jackson

FOR NPS$ USE ONLY

(Continuation Sheet) ENTRY NUMBER

DATE

(Number all entries)

8. #3
THE JACKSON COUNTY COURTHOUSE

61bid., Vol. 25, p. 20.

'Ransas_City [Missouri] Times, June 7, 1907.

8Independence [Missouri] Examiner, September, 1933; and Harry S.
Truman, Year of Decisions (Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday, 1955),
I., p. 140,

9Duane Meyer, The Heritage of Missouri (St. Louis: State Publishing
Co., Inc., 1963), p. 648. '

105ohn Francis McDermott, ed., Travels in Search of the Elephant:
The Wandering of Alfred S. Wough, Artist, in Louisiana, Missouril
and Santa Fe,in 1845-46 (St. Louis, 1950}, p. 42.




NIRRT SE ST Y HPEPRE T i Lt

{A1OR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

‘(engraving).

1. "A Bird's Eye View of the City of Independence, Missouri, 1868,"

2., Generalization drawn from historical and architectural data collected
by staff members of the Missouri State Park Board, State Historical
Survey and Planning Office during a comprehensive survey of Missouri's
114 courthouses during the winter of 1970-71. :

OGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY | O DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONG!TUDE
. Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Secends Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW ° ’ " ° ' " 39 05- 33-N 94 o 22 58-W
NE o [ L -] [ " -
SE o : " ° ' "
3% e + - o ’ n
APPROQXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: less than ten acres
ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: CODE COUNTY CcCoDLE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

NMAME AND TITLE:

‘M, Patrici

ORGANIZATION

ief Arch.jtectu;_:a] Hiastorian
Missourl State Park Board
State Historical Survey and Planning Office
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Photo Log:

Name of Property: Jackson County Courthouse

City or Vicinity: Independence

County: Jackson County State: MO
Photographer: ML Kusiak

Date

Photographed: Nov. 1969

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera:

1 of 7. E fagade and NE corner, view looking SW.

2 of 7. 1848 remodeling.

3 of 7. First permanent courthouse built in 1836. The walls of this structure from the core of all
subsequent remodeling phases.

4 of 7. S facade, portico section, view looking N.

5 of 7. W fagade and SW corner, view looking NE.

6 of 7. 1907 remodeling, NE corner, view from NE looking SW.

7 of 7. E fagade, view looking NW.
























